Preface

This is a petitionerls brief on the merits by Park of Commerce 

Associates, Anthony V. Pugliese, 111, Dominic Alfieri, Harvey 

Schultz, P&P Associates and A&A Associates. The petitioners will 

generally be referred to as "Park of Commercell. The respondents 

are Land Resources Investment Company and the City of Delray Beach. 

The Land Resources Company is totally owned by Florida Power & 

Light Company and exists solely for the purposes of buying and 

developing property for Florida Power & Light. Land Resources will 

be referred to throughout this brief as FPL and was so designated 

in the district court opinions herein. 

This is controversy over the use of certain land by the owner 

FPL and the denial by the City of Delray Beach of an FPL applica- 

tion for site plan approval on that land. In addition, when FPL 

could not use the land for its intended purpose, the trial court 

ordered the seller of the land (Park of Commerce) to buy the 

property back from FPL and eventually entered a money judgment to 

carry out a buy-back provision as contained in the contract between 

FPL and Park of Commerce. 

The trial court actually entered four different judgments and 

the Fourth District Court of Appeal dealt with those four judgments 

in a single consolidated appeal. The case was eventually affirmed 

as to three judgments and reversed as to one judgment by the Fourth 

District which issued three consecutive opinions over a period of 

one year plus a fourth certification to this court. The Fourth 

District opinions are: (1) the panel opinion, (2) the en banc 
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opinion, ( 3 )  the en banc opinion on clarification and ( 4 )  the 

certification. 

The record is extensive and will be referred to as (R. - ) .  An 

appendix accompanying this brief contains the four circuit court 

judgments, the three district court opinions plus the en banc 

certification and other relevant documents. The appendix is 

designated (A. - ) . 

Btatement of the Case and Facts 

This is an extremely complex case which the Fourth District 

Court of Appeal has obviously had a great deal of difficulty with. 

The Fourth District consolidated the four appeals and initially 

affirmed all four cases. (A.14). The district court then 

reconsidered and reversed all four cases. (A.17). Then, the court 

further clarified and affirmed three cases and reversed one case. 

( A . 2 5 ) .  Eventually the court certified two questions finding 

conflict and questions of public importance. (A.28-33). The 

difficulty seemed to arise primarily from the existence of two 

conflicting opinions on the issue of site plan approval by a local 

government. 

A motion to amend the petitioner's notice invoking discretion- 

ary jurisdiction was filed with this court on January 14, 1993 and 

remains pending as of this time. The present brief will address 

all arguments which would be appropriate in the event the court 

allows the amendment. The only additional argument is limited to 

direct conflict with two cases and is on page 30 herein. 

2 
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The Parties 

Generally, the parties are as follows: 

park of Commerce -- the owner/developer of 25 acres of 

unimproved land located in Delray Beach. After rezoning the 

property from residential to "planned office centertt (POC), Park 

of Commerce sold off three acres to Florida Power & Light (FPL) for 

the purposes of building a two story customer service center. The 

building was to be used for customers paying their electric bills 

and other similar administrative matters. The property was zoned 

commercial and the use was designated commercial as an office 

center. The three acre parcel was separately platted by the city 

to allow for construction of this specific building by FPL. The 

platting occurred shortly before the sale of the parcel to FPL. 

The three acre parcel had access to only one street known as 22nd 

Avenue/29th Street, hereafter designated as 22/29th Street. The 

three acre parcel did not abut any street other than 22/29th 

Street. 

Land Resources Investment Company -- this company is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of FPL and existed solely for the purposes of 

buying and developing property. FPL intended to build a new 

customer service facility and thus bought the three acre parcel 

which was zoned POC (Planned Office Center) by the City of Delray 

Beach. This three acre parcel was separately platted specifically 

for construction of the FPL office building. 
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Despite the zoning and platting which allowed the building, 

the site plan was eventually denied by the city. When FPL 

submitted its initial site plan it cooperated with all of the 

city's staff and boards in making suggested changes as to the 

location, appearance, configuration and other details of the site 

and building. Eventually, site plan approval was sought from the 

city council which denied approval solely because of neighborhood 

complaints that the FPL building would result in commercial traffic 

on 22/29th Street. The sales contract between Park of Commerce and 

FPL included a buy-back provision requiring the seller to repur- 

chase the property if the city I1decreedm1 that access from llsome 

other public street" would be a condition precedent to a permit or 

site plan. 

The Citv of Delrav Beach -- The City of Delray is a municipal- 
ity and the local zoning authority. The city initially granted 

permission to build the FPL building on the site in question but 

eventually denied the site plan necessary for actual construction 

Factual Overview 

This property can best be described by the following graphic 

representation which is not to scale but shows the location of the 

property as owned by FPL and the adjoining property as owned by 

4 
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Park of Commerce. The  street in question (22/29th Street) is a 

curved thoroughfare joining Congress Avenue. 

opinions and Rulings of the Fourth District 
Court of Appeal and the Judgments Below 

In this consolidated appeal involving four case numbers, the  

Fourth District Court of Appeal has now issued three opinions plus 

a certification. (A.14-33). The district c o u r t  initially affirmed 

all four cases, then reconsidered and reversed all four cases, then 

further clarified and affirmed three cases and reversed one case 

and finally certified the whole matter to this court. Only one 

oral argument occurred and the cour t  s last opinion of November 18, 

1992 stated that no further motions for rehearing could be filed. 

Park of Commerce won the battle, then lost the war and was 

foreclosed from further argument on rehearing. 

5 



The trial court had previously issued four separate judgments 

all resulting from a single trial as follows: 

1. Final Judgment on site plan denial in favor of the City 
of Delray Beach as defendant and against Florida Power t 
Light and Park of Commerce as Plaintiffs - appealed as 
Case No. 88-3192. 

2. Final Judgment on contract buy-back provision in favor of 
FPL as plaintiff and against Park of Commerce as defen- 
dant - appealed as Case No. 88-3193. 

3. Final Judgment of $740,655.00 in favor of FPL as plain- 
tiff and against Park of Commerce as defendant - appealed 
as Case No. 89-1387. This money judgment was entered 
when Park of Commerce did not repurchase the property. 

4. Judgment for FPL as plaintiff for attorney's fees and 
costs against Park of Commerce as defendant - appealed as 
Case No. 89-2654. 

All four judgments were appealed and consolidated before the Fourth 

District Court of Appeal and dealt with in the three different 

opinions plus the certification. 

Opinions by the Fourth District Court of Appeal 

A f t e r  the oral argument of October 19, 1990, the court did not 

issue its first opinion for over one year. The court was faced 

with an obvious conflict in its own opinions. The Citv of Bovnton 

Beach v, V.S.H. Realtv. Inc., 433 So. 2d 452 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984) 

opinion holds that a city denial of a site plan is lesislative and 

can only be reviewed by a trial de novo and not by certiorari/ 

appellate review. In contrast, Citv of Lauderdale Lakes v. Corn, 

427 So. 2d 239 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983) had held directly to the 

contrary concluding site plan denial was auasi-judicial and thus 

subject to appellate review by certiorari in circuit court. The 

trial court had accepted the Bovnton Beach opinion and rejected the 

6 
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Corn opinion. 

and issued the following. 

The district court had great difficulty in choosing 

1. A Panel Opinion of November 27, 1991, affirming all four 

judgments based on Bovnt on Beach. This mere Citation PCA was 

accompanied by a dissent relying on Corq and a special concurrence 

aareeinq with the dissent and Corn. 

2 .  An En Banc Opinion on Rehearing of September 2, 1992, 

reversing all four judgments based on an overruling of Bovnton 

Beach and the adoption of Corn as the law of the Fourth District 

Court of Appeal. 

3. An En Banc Clarification Opinion of November 18, 1992, 

affirming three cases in reliance on Boynton Beach and reversing 

one case based on the overruling of the same Bovnton Beach opinion, 

no further rehearing to be considered. 

4. Mandate of November 20, 1992, issued two days after the 

last opinion. 

5. En Banc Certification to Supreme Court of January 4 ,  

1993. 

The initial notice of appeal had been filed in the Fourth 

District Court of Appeal on November 23, 1988 and the en banc 

certification occurred approximately four years later on January 4, 

1993. Only one oral argument occurred. 

Certified Questions 

The Fourth District Court of Appeal certified the following 

questions: 

1. Whether City of Bovnton Beach v. V . S . H .  Realty. Inc, 
433 So. 2d 452 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984) as relied upon in 

7 
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this court's November 18, 1992, en banc opinion, 
accurately states the law concerning appellate 
review of decisions of local governments on building 
permits, site plans and other development orders. 

2. Whether this court's affirmance of three cases based on 
Citv of Bovnton Beach v. V.S.H. Realtv. Inc ., and the 
simultaneous reversal of one case based on an overruling . consti- of Citv of Bovnton Beach v. V . $ . H  . Realtv. Inc 
tutes a correct application of the en banc review 
process. 

The Park of Commerce motion for certification in the Fourth 

District sought to have the court determine that a conflict existed 

with Snvder v. Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County, 595 

So. 2d 65 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991) and Colonial ADartments, L . P .  v. Citv 

of Deland, 577 So. 2d 593 (Fla. 5th DCA),  review denied, 584 So. 2d 

997 (Fla. 1991). The Snvder case was argued before this court on 

March 1, 1993 and presents some similar issues. Although the 

Fourth District's certification order does not directly state that 

a conflict was found, the order grants the motion as filed and thus 

a direct conflict with both Snyder and Colonial will be the subject 

of very limited argument herein. Obviously, this court has 

jurisdiction in any event. 

UnUerlying Circuit Court Actions 

The case was instituted with a complaint filed by bath FPL and 

Park of Commerce seeking appellate review of site plan denial by a 

petition for certiorari and a petition for mandamus. (R.1591- 

1631). The entire record of city proceedings including hearing 

transcripts were attached. FPL was the owner and Park of Commerce 

the recent seller of the property. This petition was filed 

November 26, 1986 and was designated as Case No. 86-11052 AJ in the 

8 
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Circuit Court. Based on the Bovnton Beach decision, certiorari 

review was dismissed as an improper remedy by order of February 9, 

1987 (R.1639). Suit by FPL on the buy-back provision of the sales 

contract between FPL and Park of Commerce was filed January 22, 

1987 and designated as Case No. 87-586 in the circuit court. The 

initial complaint in the main case, now amended by FPL to seek a 

trial de novo rather than certiorari review, and the subsequently 

filed repurchase suit under the sales contract by FPL were 

consolidated before the trial court and tried together in an 

extensive non-jury declaratory decree trial. (R.1645-1765). 

The trial court ruled, based on Bovnton Beach, that the city's 

denial of the site plan could be reviewed only in a declaratory 

decree action in the nature of a trial de novo with the ttfairly 

debatable rule" as the standard of evidentiary proof. (R.17-19). 

As a result of this ruling the  city was not limited to the record 

of what had actually been considered in denying the site plan and 

was instead allowed to present new reasons as to why it might have 
denied the site plan application. (R.426-431). The city was 

allowed to present experts to testify to various drainage problems 

and other problems which had never been previously mentioned to FPL 

and which could have been easily remedied had they been brought to 

FPL's attention. (A.3). 

The evidence from the city's own record was clear that FPL had 

done all that it was asked to do to change its site plan to satisfy 

the city. This was the which would have been the basis 

for appellate review had certiorari been allowed. However, in the 
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trial de novo the city came up with new and different reasons which 

had never been mentioned before. Obviously this was not appellate 

review of a record but was instead a total trial de novo based on 

new evidence never previously considered by the city council. The 

court judged the credibility of the witnesses. ( A . 3 ) .  The 

presence or absence of valid reasons for the initial denial became 

irrelevant. The court applied the fairly debatable standard to all 

these new reasons and found denial to be debatable. ( A . 3 ) .  The 

FPL site plan was held to be properly denied and FPL could not use 

the property. 

At the same time as it was hearing the de novo evidence 

regarding the site plan, the court also heard minimal evidence on 

FPL's claim that Park of Commerce should be required to buy back 

the property under the contract between the parties. ( A . 5 - 8 ) .  The 

buy-back provision was as follows: 

That if Buyer closes this transaction and is subsequently 
(within 180 days of closing) refused a City of Delray 
Beach building permit or site plan approval because the 
City or some other government agency having jurisdiction 
declares or decrees that access from some other PU blic 
street (other than S.W. 22nd Avenue/S.W. 29th Street) is 
a condition precedent to any building permits issuance, 
the Buyer may elect to resell the property to the Seller, 
and Seller agrees that it shall repurchase the same at 
the same gross purchase price as this transaction. . . . 
Such purchase shall be concluded within thirty (30) days 
from and after Buyer's election to resell the property to 
Seller. (Emphasis supplied). 

The trial court held that Park of Commerce should be required 

to buy the property back from FPL because the city had "decreed8I 

that access should be from some other rsublic street. ( A . 6 ) .  The 

court initially entered a judgment ordering a buy back and when 

10 
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Park of Commerce did not repurchase, then entered a money judgment 

against Park of Commerce for the value of the property. (A .9 -10 ) .  

Eventually the court also entered a judgment for attorney's fees 

and costs in favor of FPL against Park of Commerce. ( A . 1 1 - 1 3 ) .  

In a bizarre twist, the trial court invalidated and held 

illegal the city's denial of the site plan based upon neighborhood 

complaints about access to the only adjoining street. The court 

held that this was the real reason for denial but that it was 

totally illegal for the city to deny access to the street and that 

the FPL property which abutted only one street, was entitled to 

access from that street. The city never really asserted it 

was proper to totally cut off access to the property but instead 

relied upon its new, de novo, evidence of additional reasons as to 

why, in retrospect, the city might have earlier denied the 

application. The trial court held that the site plan denial was 

proper because it was fairly debatable as to whether drainage, 

etc., was proper. However, the trial court also held that the real 

denial was access based and thus the buy-back provision was 

triggered. The court allowed the city to rely upon its new reasons 

(drainage and a bridge problem) but did not allow Park of Commerce 

to rely upon those same new reasons to avoid the buy-back require- 

ment. 

(A.2). 

There were basically two rulings by the trial court on the 

merits. Initially the city was held to have properly denied the 

site plan because of the new reasons. Secondly, the trial court 

found that since the real reason for denial, rather than the de 

11 
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novo trial reasons, was access based, that the buy-back provision 

in the contract was triggered. 

All four of the trial court's judgments were appealed and 

considered by the Fourth District Court of Appeal in a consolidated 

fashion. Park of Commerce and FPL sought reversal of the denial of 

appellate review arguing that certiorari should have been granted 

and that the circuit court should simply have ordered the city to 

approve the site plan. Park of Commerce also argued that the buy- 

back/money judgment should also be reversed if the main judgment 

was reversed. 

The district court initially issued a panel opinion after over 

a year affirming all four judgments based upon Bovnton Beach. 

Amazingly, two judges disagreed with the majority Citation PCA 

holding that Corn was correct. Next the court issued an en banc 

opinion reversing all the judgments based upon an overruling of 

Bovnton Beach and adoption of Corn as correct. Next the court 

issued an en banc opinion on clarification stating that the three 

buy-back moneyljudgments were affirmed based upon Bovnton Beach and 

the one judgment on the site plan was reversed based upon an 

overruling of Bovnton Beach. Next the court certified the entire 

matter to this court in two questions. (A.32-33). 

Underlying Faats 

Since the first certified question directly raises the 

correctness of the Bovnton Beach opinion it is necessary to 

consider the basic facts. Park of Commerce initially owned 

approximately 25 acres and had the property rezoned from residen- 

12 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

tial to POC -- Planned Office Center. In doing so, a preliminary 

plan showing access onto Congress Avenue and access onto 22/29th 

Street was supplied to the city. The property, before the sale of 

three acres to FPL, fronted on Congress Avenue which was a major 

arterial highway. Under the City Code, 22/29th Street was 

described as a "collector r0ad.I' (R.512-515). No residences 

actually abutted or accessed onto 22/29th Street but the area was 

generally considered residential in nature. The first site plan by 

Park of Commerce was changed at the request of city staff to 

eliminate access onto 22/29th Street. (R.501-503). This second 

site plan showed access solely onto Congress Avenue on which the 25 

acres fronted. The city denied approval of this site plan for the 

stated reason of insufficient ingress and egress. (R.501-503). 

Eventually, on March 18, 1985, the site plan was withdrawn and it 

was never further acted upon by the city. (R.482, 527). 

On March 19, 1985, when the 25 acres were rezoned from RM-10 

to POC, the rezoning documents did not restrict access to Congress 

Avenue or any other street. Although the city was free to ask for 

conditions on the rezoning, it did no t  do so. Eventually, Park of 

Commerce petitioned the city to abandon a portion of 22/29th Street 

so that it could be used in the development of the property. 

(R.P.Ex.9). The city refused the request to abandon the street and 

specifically stated the denial was because 22/29th Street was a 

collector road. (R.Pl.Ex.14). In May of 1986, Park of Commerce 

advised the city that it was abandoning any intent to develop the 

property. 

13 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
.I 
1 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
4 
I 

The Platting of the FPL Property 

FPL needed to construct a new customer 'service center facility 

and bought three acres out of the 25 acre tract from Park of 

Commerce for the building. It was to be a two-story office 

building of 23,000 square feet. Customers of the Delray Beach area 

would come there to pay their electric bills. Other administrative 

functions would be performed in the building. The building was 

much smaller than the square footage allowed under the zoning code. 

The structure fit within the requirements of the zoning code in 

every respect and there were no comprehensive plan problems or 

consistency issues. Unfortunately, this office zone was viewed by 

the surrounding residents as a commercial endeavor. (R.198-202). 

In actuality, it was a buffer between residential areas and more 

intensive areas.

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