#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA



CASE NO. 80,973

BLERK, SUPREME COURT

By-Chief Deputy Clerk

PARK OF COMMERCE ASSOCIATES, etc.,

Petitioner,

v.

CITY OF DELRAY BEACH, a Florida Municipal Corporation, DOAK S. CAMPBELL, III, MAYOR, JAMES WEATHERSPOON, RICHARD DOUGHERTY, MALCOLM BIRD, and MARIE HORENBURGER, City Council Members, and LAND RESOURCES INVESTMENT COMPANY,

Respondents.

## RESPONDENT, CITY OF DELRAY BEACH, FLORIDA, ET AL'S ANSWER BRIEF ON THE MERITS

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY CITY OF DELRAY BEACH, FLORIDA Susan A. Ruby, Esq. Assessment City Attorney 200 N.W. 1st Avenue Delray Beach, Florida 33444 (407) 243-7091 Florida Bar No. 0613940

#

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

#### Summary of Argument

The Trial Court properly reviewed the City's denial of a site plan submitted by FPL for declaratory and injunctive relief in a de novo trial.

The Corn case and the Boynton Beach case are not in conflict. The ordinances were different. The cases are ordinance in Corn established distinguishable. The an administrative process requiring only compliance with narrow technical issues. Conversely, the ordinance reviewed in Boynton Beach gave wide discretion to the legislative body to determine the effects of the particular project on the adjacent property and the City as a whole. The Boynton Beach ordinance contained no language and had no attributes establishing a guasi-judicial hearing process.

Like the ordinance in <u>Boynton Beach</u>, the City of Delray Beach's ordinance governing site plan review clearly establishes a quasi-legislative process. The City's ordinance is not narrowly drawn and does not set forth or contemplate an administrative or ministerial activity. The City's ordinance does not contain any language establishing a quasi-judicial process of review. Nor was a quasi-judicial or administrative process actually followed at the October 28, 1986 City Commission meeting. The City's ordinance establishes a quasi-legislative process.

Site plan review is not the same, nor is it similar to the platting process. There is no uniform system or State Statute governing site plans. Unlike platting which is governed by State Statute establishing a uniform system compliance with technical requirements, site plan review is governed by local ordinance.

It is a violation of the Doctrine Separation of Powers for a Court to label all site plan review as quasi-judicial, or as an administrative/ministerial activity in the face of contrary provisions of governing ordinances. In doing so, the judiciary is not effectuating the intent of the local government legislature body, but is instead creating legislation.

The en banc ruling of September 2, 1992 is contrary to public policy. Municipal Home Rule Power authorizes local governments to establish by ordinance the type of review for site plan approval. The Mutual Home Rule Powers Act gives municipalities broad powers to legislate on a broad number of topics not expressly preempted to the State or County. In addition, the Growth Management Act's purpose is to continue the flexibility of municipalities in formulating land development regulations. The Growth Management Act also fosters citizen input in virtually every step of the process. The court's rulings are not in harmony with the public policies expressed in state law.

<u>Jennings</u> prohibits ex parte communications in quasi-judicial proceedings. If the en banc opinion stands,

applicants and citizens will have limited access to their elected officials. To add insult to injury, those applicants and citizens will bear the cost of conducting quasi-judicial hearings.

A remand for certiorari review would prejudice the City. The City did not hire experts to testify at the October 28, 1986 City Commission meeting, relying on the quasilegislative procedures set forth in its ordinance and relying on the ruling in <u>Boynton Beach</u>. If the City had known that the proceeding was to be declared quasi-judicial, it would have hired experts to attend the City Commission meeting to support the traffic and drainage issues mentioned at the October 28, 1986 meeting of the City Commission. Clearly, if the experts retained at the de novo trial testified at the City Commission meeting, there would have been "substantial competent" evidence to support the City's decision. If a remand is necessary, it should be to the City Commission so that a quasi-judicial record can be established.

The City, however, asserts no remand is necessary. The City's ordinances contemplate legislative activity. The Trial Court decision rendered after a trial de novo should be affirmed. To do otherwise would violate Municipal Home Rule Powers, the Separation of Powers Doctrine, Public Policy and the Rules of Statutory Construction.

I.

WHETHER <u>CITY OF BOYNTON BEACH V. V.S.H.</u> <u>REALTY, INC.</u>, 433 SO.2D 452 (FLA. 4TH DCA 1984) AS RELIED UPON IN THIS COURT'S NOVEMBER 18, 1992, EN BANC OPINION ACCURATELY STATES THE LAW CONCERNING APPELLATE REVIEW OF DECISIONS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENTS ON BUILDING PERMITS, SITE PLANS AND OTHER DEVELOPMENT ORDERS

#### II.

WHETHER THIS COURT'S AFFIRMANCE OF THREE CASES BASED ON <u>CITY OF BOYNTON BEACH V.</u> <u>V.S.H. REALTY, INC.</u>, AND THE SIMULTANEOUS REVERSAL OF ONE CASE BASED ON THE OVERRULING OF <u>CITY OF BOYNTON</u> <u>BEACH V. V.S.H. REALTY, INC. CONSTITUTES</u> A CORRECT APPLICATION OF THE EN BANC REVIEW PROCESS.

#### Argument

Ι

WHETHER CITY OF BOYNTON BEACH V. V.S.H. REALTY, INC., 433 SO.2D 452 (FLA. 4TH DCA 1984) AS RELIED UPON IN THIS COURT'S NOVEMBER 18, 1992, EN BANC OPINION ACCURATELY STATES THE LAW CONCERNING APPELLATE REVIEW OF DECISIONS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENTS ON BUILDING PERMITS, SITE PLANS AND OTHER DEVELOPMENT ORDERS.

The City will address the certified question by focusing on the appropriate appellate review of decisions by local governments pertaining to site plan applications. The City is not a party to the "buy back" contract dispute and thus will not comment on the effect of the Fourth District Court of Appeals rulings as it relates to the contract between FPL and Park of Commerce or attorney's fees arising therefrom.

> A. Local Government's Home Rule Powers gives local governments authority to establish by ordinance the type of review for site plan approval.

Local governing bodies have broad home rule powers. Municipalities have all powers not reserved or preempted to the state or the county or by general law, the Florida Constitution, or County Charter. § 166.021, Fla. Stat. (1991). There is no uniform general law or other prohibition or requirement governing or mandating a specific site plan review process. Thus, a municipality, pursuant to its home rule

powers, may by ordinance establish the parameters of its site plan review process.

Whether a site plan approval process is quasi-judicial or quasi-legislative depends on the intent of the local government as reflected in its ordinances setting forth the site plan review process.

in either quasi-Α local government acts а quasi-executive capacity. legislative, guasi-judicial or Nelson v. Lindsey, 1050 2d 131 (Fla. 1942). Where a governmental body acts in a quasi-legislative capacity or quasi-executive capacity a challenge to its decision should be by declaratory and/or injunctive relief. Board of County Commissioners v. Casa Development, 332 So.2d 651 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1976). On the other hand, where a governmental body acts in a quasi-judicial capacity appellate review is appropriately by certiorari. DeGroot v. Sheffield, 95 So.2d 912 (Fla. 1957).

The issue then is what are the attributes of the particular decision making process under review? Does the quasi-legislative ordinance statute set forth a or or What was the intent of the local quasi-judicial process? government when it enacted its ordinances governing site plans? What type of activity was contemplated? Did the governing body quasi-legislative, quasi-judicial, forth or set а executive/administrative process? Does the statute or ordinance expressly set forth a particular method of review? The Legislative Intent is the controlling factor in determining

the type of review to be given to development orders affecting land, including site plan review.

To determine the legislative intent, one must look at the attributes of the process established by statute or the governing ordinance. The Supreme Court of Florida has stated, "When the statute provides the appellate procedure, that course should be followed". <u>De Groot</u>, supra 915. In <u>De Groot</u>, this court held that a Civil Service Board was acting in a quasi-judicial capacity because "... it arrived at its decision after a full hearing pursuant to notice based on evidence submitted <u>in accordance with the statute here involved"</u> Id. at 915.

In <u>Bloomfield v. Mayo</u>, 119 So.2d 417 (Fla. 1st DCA 1960), the Court was reviewing a decision by the Commissioner of Agriculture denying the registration of a pesticide product. The Court stated that,

"It thus appears that before an administrative order may be considered quasi-judicial in character and therefore subject to review by certiorari, <u>the</u> <u>statute</u> authorizing the entry of such an order must also require that the administrative agency give due notice of a hearing to be held on the question to be considered, and provide opportunity to be heard in a proceeding in which the party effected is afforded the basic requirements of due process of law." <u>Id</u>. at 421.

The First District Court of Appeal in <u>Bloomfield</u> carefully reviewed the statute to determine if it required that the registrant or others be given such notice or required a hearing in accordance with due process. The Court found that

the statute provided that the cancelling of an already approved registration, required notice and a due process hearing, but the initial granting of the registration did not require a hearing pursuant to statute and thus the court held that it did not warrant certiorari review. <u>Id</u>. at 422.

The Second District Court of Appeal in Casa Development, supra, was charged with determining whether the action of the Board of County commissioners of Hillsborough County denying а water and sewer franchise was а quasi-legislative or quasi-judicial proceeding. The authority to grant or deny the franchises was established pursuant to a Special Act. The Court looked to the Special Act to determine if there were quasi-judicial criteria. The court stated that the Special Act did not contemplate a quasi-judicial hearing nor was one conducted. "About all that happened was that Appellees' representative made some unsworn statements in support of the application and the County Attorney responded with opinions of his own". Casa Development, supra at 654. The court held that review by certiorari was, thus, not the appropriate remedy. Id at 654.

Looking at the transcript of the site plan proceedings on October 28, 1986 in this case, it is apparent that all that happened was the applicants made unsworn statements and others gave their opinions. There was no formalized hearing process.

The Fourth District Court of Appeal in <u>Connor v. Town</u> of Palm Beach, 398 So.2d 952 (Fla. 4th DCA 1981) established

that the "Board of Trustees for Town of Palm Beach Employees Retirement System's" denial of disability benefits to a law enforcement officer did not constitute a quasi-judicial decision. The court found that "there was no sworn testimony, no witnesses, no examination or cross-examination, no order containing findings and conclusions". <u>Id</u> at 954. Without this indicia of a quasi-judicial proceeding, the Court determined that the denial was properly reviewable by a petition for declaratory relief. <u>Id</u> at 954.

The above stated cases demonstrate that the statute ordinance or must be reviewed to determine if a quasi-legislative or quasi-judicial proceeding is contemplated. If the statute or ordinance is silent, then the process actually used to reach a decision must be reviewed and analyzed to determine if a quasi-judicial hearing occurred. The case law requires a hearing upon notice, and a requirement that the hearing meet basic requirements of due process, "including the to present evidence and to cross-examine right adverse witnesses and [requires that] the judgment should be contingent on the showing made at the hearing". DeGroot, supra at 654.

Local governments have municipal home rule power to establish the type of review for site plans by ordinance. The ordinance sets forth the intent of the legislative body as to its site plan review processes and is determinative as to the type of review.

B. <u>The City's site plan ordinance sets</u> forth a <u>quasi-legislative process</u>.

The City's site plan ordinance is codified in the Code of Ordinances of the City of Delray Beach at Section 30-22. [A26-32]. The City's site plan review ordinance does not contemplate a quasi-judicial process. There is no provision in the City's site plan review ordinance for a quasi-judicial hearing process. There is no requirement for a formalized public hearing, upon notice, with an opportunity to be heard in accordance with the basic requirements of due process. There is no requirement or provision for the provision of the presentation of evidence. There is no requirement for swearing in of witnesses. There is no requirement or procedure governing the issuance of an order by the City Commission. There is no requirement in the site plan ordinance that dictates a decision by the City Commission must be based solely on the evidence before them. There is no requirement that a quasi-judicial type of record be made of the proceedings. Clearly, the City had no intent as expressed in its ordinances, to establish a quasi-judicial site plan review process.

The City's ordinances requires legislative discretion. The procedures sections requires meetings to determine the "feasibility and suitability of the proposed development." [A.26-32]. The individual areas to be considered require broad discretion. For example, criteria (D)(2) requires a determination as to the affect that density

and the proposed use of the property will have on nearby property and the City as a whole. Criteria (D)(3), requires a determination of the public safety of the manner of ingress and egress and access in the case of fire and other public safety matters. Criteria (D)(4), requires an assessment as to the and odor affects on adjacent and nearbv glare, noise properties. Criteria (D)(6) concerns the manner of drainage on the property with a emphasis on the affect of the drainage nearby properties adjacent and and the provisions on consequences of such drainage on the overall public drainage (D)(7) governing sanitary capacities. Criteria sewers, requires a legislative assessment with particular emphasis as to the overall relationship to the City's sanitary sewer capacities. Criteria (D)(9) concerns availability and recreation and open spaces. This requirement requires a legislative assessment of the effect of the adequacy of recreation facilities and open spaces and a determination of the appropriate relationship of said spaces to City-wide open spaces and recreation facilities. Further, Criteria (D)(10) governing site development, requires an assessment that the general layout will be compatible and harmonious with nearby properties and the City as a whole as not to cause substantial depreciation of property values. [A. 26-32].

Further, Section 30-22(G)(14) of the City's Code of Ordinances regarding site plan review, requires an evaluation of the site plan and permits the requesting of any further

information necessary to establish compliance with not only the site plan ordinance, but all other ordinances of the City. [A. 26-32].

Clearly, site plan review and the considerations placed before the City Commission in reviewing a site plan is legislative in character as the issues of concern are the public health, safety, and welfare. These public health, safety and welfare matters must be considered and voted upon by the City Commission. In addition, it is clear that the decision of the City must address the impact of development on the community at large, rendering site plan review within the City of Delray Beach, legislative in character and not subject to the certiorari review. (See. <u>Board of County Commissioners</u> <u>v. Circuit Court of Twelfth Judicial Circuit</u>, 533 So.2d 537 (Fla. 2d DCA 1983).

The actual process followed at the October 28, 1986 meeting of the City Commission was not quasi-judicial. The City did not provide a special notice of the hearing. The City did not provide for a record via transcript. (FPL secured one on its own initiative). The City did not issue a board order stating its findings of fact or law, but acted in its legislative capacity and acted upon the application by motion and vote [see L.R. Ex-5b]. The City did not swear-in witnesses. No cross-examination was afforded. There was not one scintilla of an indicia of a quasi-judicial hearing. [See LR.Ex.1].

The City did not afford a quasi-judicial process to the applicants. The intent of the City's ordinance is clearly to establish a quasi-legislative process. Quasi-legislative processes are not subject to certiorari review.

# C. <u>The ordinance in Corn is distinguishable and</u> sets forth a technical administrative process.

The trial court in <u>Corn</u> found that "the evidence establishes that the City Council was required to permit the applicant to correct the deficiencies; and when the corrections were made, the ordinances of the City of Lauderdale Lakes would require the City Council to approve the site plans. <u>City of</u> Lauderdale Lakes v. Corn, 427 So.2d 239 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983).

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